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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I understand

          3  some people go here early, which is a good sign.

          4                 Good afternoon, and welcome to this

          5  hearing of the Governmental Operations Committee of

          6  the New York City Council.

          7                 My name is Bill Perkins, I'm the

          8  Deputy Majority Leader, and the Chair of this

          9  Committee.

         10                 Today we consider Intro. 370, a bill

         11  that seeks to make the Mayor's Management Report,

         12  the MMR, more reflective of the needs of the City

         13  residents.

         14                 Currently, the MMR does not directly

         15  gauge public opinion with respect to City Services.

         16  Intro. 370 is based on the premise that good

         17  government flows not only from the consent of the

         18  governed, but also from a genuine understanding of

         19  their wants and needs.

         20                 How can government properly serve the

         21  public if it does not take every opportunity to know

         22  what the public thinks of the service it receives?

         23                 Today, any big business that does not

         24  perform market research or customer satisfaction

         25  surveys is operating in the dark. Government should
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          2  follow this lead. Intro. 370 envisions the wide use

          3  of citizen satisfaction surveys, which when combined

          4  with agency data, provide a more accurate view of

          5  the City's success or failure in delivering

          6  services.

          7                 Such surveys will provide information

          8  regarding citizen satisfaction and the reason for

          9  using such services. They will identify those needs

         10  not currently covered by available services and

         11  gauge citizens support for the policies behind the

         12  services rendered.

         13                 Such surveys should incorporate the

         14  differences in satisfaction, disaggregated by race,

         15  age, gender and other socioeconomic indices.

         16                 They can help track particular

         17  incidents or cases. Ultimately including data

         18  collected by such surveys in the MMR will further

         19  empower the public. After all, knowledge is power.

         20                 Before we proceed, I want to

         21  recognize members of the Committee. To my immediate

         22  right, Council Member Joseph Addabbo, and to his

         23  immediate right, Council Member Michael Nelson.

         24                 I also want to recognize the Counsel

         25  to this Committee, to my immediate left, welcome him
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          2  home. He's been out for a little bit due to health

          3  reasons, Daniel Serrano. And then I also want to

          4  recognize the Policy Analyst, Sandy Dillon. Mr.

          5  Telemark, of course, sitting behind the pole. I'm

          6  not quite sure exactly what that means.

          7                 But in any case, we're going to begin

          8  with our first panel that includes, from the Mayor's

          9  Office of Operations, Myrna Ramon and Anthony Longo.

         10  Welcome.

         11                 MS. RAMON: Good afternoon. My name is

         12  Myrna Ramon, and I am the First Deputy Director of

         13  the Mayor's Office of Operations.

         14                 Beside me is my colleague Tony Longo,

         15  Director of Management Analysis and Planning. We

         16  appreciate the opportunity to testify today about

         17  Intro. 370, which would require the administration

         18  of a citizen satisfaction survey as part of the

         19  Mayor's Management Report or MMR.

         20                 While undoubtedly a sample survey

         21  would provide another perspective on performance

         22  reporting, by zeroing on resident perceptions of

         23  City services, we believe the data captured through

         24  the 3-1-1 Citizen Service Center goes beyond the

         25  information that could be generated by a survey.
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          2                 3-1-1 data can tell us what's on the

          3  minds of New Yorkers and provides key information

          4  about how efficiently we are responding to citizen

          5  concerns.

          6                 The sheer volume of information

          7  generated through 3-1-1 far exceeds anything that

          8  could be achieved through the administration of a

          9  sample survey. Now receiving over 12 million calls a

         10  year, 3-1-1 is a real-time source citizen data on

         11  non-emergency issues, providing continuous feedback

         12  on the conditions that attract New Yorkers'

         13  attention and the services they want most

         14  immediately from City government.

         15                 By comparison, the most recent New

         16  York City citizen surveys conducted for the City

         17  Council in 2000 and 2001 sampled less than 2,500

         18  residents. We would also suggest that the factors

         19  that prompt people to call 3-1-1, their immediate

         20  reaction to conditions affecting them personally,

         21  make their information more meaningful than the

         22  responses of survey targets whose participation may

         23  be grudgingly obtained and whose level of personal

         24  involvement in expressing attitudes about different

         25  governmental services may vary widely.
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          2                 We continue to increase our reporting

          3  of 3-1-1-based information and to make greater use

          4  of the direct citizen feedback that we are obtaining

          5  through callers. The City will be expanding

          6  exponentially the volume of geographically

          7  disaggregated 3-1-1 information that is furnished

          8  when monthly figures at the community district level

          9  will be published in accordance with Local Law 47.

         10                 Elected officials, community boards

         11  and the public will be provided with feedback from

         12  New Yorkers, broken down to the zip code level.

         13                 The City will also provide

         14  corresponding information on agency responsiveness

         15  to request for services.

         16                 The lack of a citizen survey as a

         17  companion to the MMR has been a continuing criticism

         18  of the report.

         19                 Earlier this year, Office of

         20  Operations' staff reviewed practices in performance

         21  measurement and public reporting for 83 of the

         22  nation's largest cities that furnish online

         23  performance information.

         24                 Only about half of these citizens

         25  publish citizen satisfaction results. Surveys are by
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          2  no means universal, and even where they are

          3  undertaken, it is not always on an annual basis. In

          4  some cases jurisdictions may present survey results

          5  because no other outcome-related measures are

          6  available.

          7                 Citizen surveys may be the first

          8  thing since cities or counties try when called upon

          9  to catch up with the trend towards results-based

         10  management.

         11                 A concern that has been raised about

         12  the overall usefulness of 3-1-1 information is that

         13  it will lead to skewed conclusions given differences

         14  in the public's willingness to complain.

         15                 Specifically, the belief is that

         16  residents in areas with greater problems are less

         17  trustful of government and less likely to call.

         18                 The ease of using 3-1-1, coupled with

         19  the availability of 170 languages seems to have

         20  smoothed out these differences.

         21                 While we cannot rule out readiness to

         22  complain as one of the factors affecting trends in

         23  the data, analysis of 3-1-1 geographic data shows

         24  that the patterns for different complaint types

         25  correspond to recognizable differences in
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          2  neighborhood conditions.

          3                 For example, Manhattan doesn't rank

          4  high on blocked driveway complaints, since there

          5  aren't many driveways in Manhattan. These complaints

          6  come largely from Queens and Brooklyn, areas in

          7  which many complaints come from Manhattan include

          8  smoking violations, illegal parking and noise

          9  violations.

         10                 Rodent complaints rank high in areas

         11  of Brooklyn where we know from the Department of

         12  Health there is a problem, and in some areas of

         13  Manhattan and Queens, by comparison Staten Island

         14  shows a small number of complaints.

         15                 One last point on citizen

         16  satisfaction surveys. There are no budgetary

         17  resources currently available for carrying out this

         18  task. Meeting the intent of the Committee's proposal

         19  could prove costly.

         20                 The Mayor's Office of Operations,

         21  where the budget is relatively small, and comprised

         22  almost exclusively of personnel cost, it would be

         23  extremely difficult to find the necessary resources

         24  to carry out the new responsibility.

         25                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity
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          2  to testify. We are ready to answer questions you may

          3  have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you for

          5  your testimony.

          6                 So, it's a budgetary obstacle. What

          7  is your present budget?

          8                 MS. RAMON: I don't have the figure

          9  offhand, but we can get back to you. But it's mostly

         10  personnel.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Mostly

         12  personnel.

         13                 MS. RAMON: Staffing as opposed to --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: What do you

         15  think you would need in order to overcome this

         16  obstacle? Assuming all the other pieces of the

         17  puzzle made sense, which obviously you don't think

         18  so, at least according to your testimony. Assuming

         19  it was simply a budgetary matter, what would you

         20  suggest would be needed?

         21                 Do you have any idea what a

         22  scientific survey would cost your agency? Or have

         23  you thought about it from that point of view? Or are

         24  you just saying you don't have the money?

         25                 MS. RAMON: Well, we don't have the
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          2  money. We haven't looked at the different costs and

          3  scientific approach. We've looked at what some other

          4  cities have done.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: What are you

          6  finding in these other cities?

          7                 MS. RAMON: Maybe Tony could speak to

          8  more --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: In terms of

         10  cost. And what size are the cities that you're

         11  talking about?

         12                 Identify yourself, please, for the

         13  record.

         14                 MR. LONGO: I'm Tony Longo. I'm a

         15  Deputy Director at the Mayor's Office of Operations.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         17                 MR. LONGO: We don't have information

         18  on the costs incurred by other cities in doing

         19  citizen surveys. Those cities were on a list of the

         20  150 largest US cities by population, those posted by

         21  Governing Magazine, and because at Operations we try

         22  to keep abreast of the performance reporting

         23  practices, especially in terms of the on-line

         24  presentation.

         25                 About June we went through all those
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          2  links and found 83 cities were presenting

          3  performance information in some form or another, and

          4  about half of those were including citizen surveys.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Did you get a

          6  chance to sort of review those citizen surveys, or

          7  anything that might help you gain some appreciation

          8  for what it meant for those localities?

          9                 MR. LONGO: Not in depth. Not in

         10  detail.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, on a

         12  superficial basis, what did you find? Or did you

         13  look at it at all?

         14                 MR. LONGO: It's more important an

         15  element within some cities performance reporting

         16  structures than others. Some jurisdictions do only

         17  citizen survey reporting or little else. Others

         18  include a few satisfaction questions as part of a

         19  bigger report.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You know, I

         21  guess we all recognize, even though we may have

         22  different points of view on how to get there, that

         23  understanding where the citizens are coming from is

         24  important towards good government. For those of us,

         25  whether we're in the legislative side or the
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          2  administrative side, we need to know what are

          3  people's concerns, people's satisfactions,

          4  dissatisfactions so on and so forth.

          5                 And I guess what I'm trying to get at

          6  is, in those jurisdictions that you are familiar

          7  with where they use such surveys, what are those

          8  cities learning from the value of such surveys, from

          9  the research that you've done if you've had any

         10  opportunity to look at it from that point of view?

         11                 MR. LONGO: We'd have to look more

         12  closely, do more research and possibly contact

         13  people in those jurisdictions to be able to answer

         14  that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         16                 Did any of those jurisdictions have a

         17  3-1-1 or a comparable kind of system like the one we

         18  have that you think is so important for New York?

         19                 MR. LONGO: There is a few that do,

         20  yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: That do have a

         22  3-1-1?

         23                 MR. LONGO: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And do they have

         25  citizen surveys as well, do you know?
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          2                 MR. LONGO: There are a few where

          3  there's that overlap.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Do you know

          5  offhand which those are?

          6                 MR. LONGO: I'd have to get back to

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Please do. I'd

          9  really appreciate that.

         10                 With respect to 3-1-1, which

         11  apparently has become quite popular, at least in

         12  terms of getting people to use it, but my experience

         13  is that no one ever uses it as a form of a survey.

         14  No one that I know of picks it up and says I want

         15  you to hear my opinion about this, that or the

         16  other, per se, as much as in many instances in my

         17  district, it's become sort of like a complaint hot

         18  line, like there's an abandoned car, they give you a

         19  number for your complaint, then they call my office,

         20  and they say, you know, I've called and they gave me

         21  this number, can you follow it because it's been

         22  awhile and they haven't done anything about it, so

         23  on and so forth.

         24                 So, clearly, by the time they reach

         25  me they're expressing some dissatisfaction. But
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          2  generally speaking, I don't get from my

          3  constituency, or even from my colleagues, that that

          4  becomes sort of a survey instrument per se.

          5  Obviously, as you've been able to testify, you can

          6  get a sense of where problems are being expressed in

          7  various parts of the City and compare those and say,

          8  well, we're hearing about a lot of rats over here,

          9  but over here we're hearing about a lot of something

         10  else.

         11                 But that's not a survey, that's just

         12  like a calculating or adding up of complaints.

         13  That's the way I see it. I don't want to dismiss

         14  that as irrelevant, I think it has value. But from

         15  the perspective of a survey, do you see 3-1-1 as a

         16  survey instrument or citizen satisfaction survey

         17  instrument? Was it designed for that kind of a

         18  feedback and that kind of interaction?

         19                 Do you understand what I'm getting

         20  at? Because, for instance, a survey might want to

         21  look at, okay, we know that there are different

         22  levels of rats, you know, infestation in different

         23  communities, but we know that even if you have a

         24  whole lot of complaints in Brooklyn, it doesn't mean

         25  you have even a comparable amount of rats in
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          2  Manhattan.

          3                 So, the question might be, how are we

          4  doing with the rat attacks that the City has

          5  designed, and just try to get some sense from the

          6  public in terms of what their perception of what

          7  their sense of that effort is.

          8                 So, that's a very specific, you know,

          9  pet project of mine so-to-speak. You couldn't get

         10  that, how would you get that out of 3-1-1? Do you

         11  understand what I'm getting at?

         12                 How would you be able to say, you

         13  know?

         14                 MS. RAMON: You get more of the real

         15  time sort of information from the data.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Real time

         17  stories.

         18                 MS. RAMON: In terms of the

         19  complaints, what you were saying before, what the

         20  actual needs or what the actual complaint is.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. I think

         22  that, again, 3-1-1 as a tool has proven to have some

         23  value. I would not, I don't want to criticize it in

         24  terms of its shortcoming from the perspective that I

         25  think a survey, a citizen survey offers. But I do
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          2  feel that there's a complimentary opportunity here

          3  that where even if there is an overlap, that does

          4  not hurt. I just don't see how that can, in fact,

          5  all it can do is help reinforce, if anything, or at

          6  least raise some questions that I think from my

          7  experience, as an elected official dealing with a

          8  lot of constituent-type services, it's always good

          9  to sometimes have redundancy in complaints, you

         10  know, and different ways of getting that

         11  information.

         12                 So, I'm just wondering, even as you

         13  see 3-1-1 having some value in the direction that

         14  you've discussed quite well, you see absolutely no

         15  value in a citizen survey, assuming that there are

         16  no budgetary constraints?

         17                 MR. LONGO: I'm not sure that we have

         18  an overall answer.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         20                 MR. LONGO: I think the answer is that

         21  we don't see literally no value at all in a citizens

         22  survey.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         24                 MR. LONGO: But that the existing

         25  3-1-1 source of data represents such a massive
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          2  volume of in-coming data about citizen concerns that

          3  maybe that's the first place to look for further

          4  development.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I agree that it

          6  has offered an opportunity to hear from the public

          7  in a way that especially 9-1-1 wasn't designed to

          8  do. So, we're happy about that, that we sort of

          9  dissected that part of it. I'm just wondering if

         10  part of that sort of arsenal of opportunities to

         11  hear from the public, if a citizen survey can be

         12  helpful in that regard.

         13                 I'm going to allow my colleagues who

         14  have some questions and concerns, if they want.

         15                 I want to recognize the Chairperson

         16  of our Public Safety Committee, Council Member Peter

         17  Vallone, who has joined us.

         18                 Yes, Council Member Addabbo has a

         19  question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         21  Chairman Perkins. And I want to thank this panel for

         22  their time and testimony today.

         23                 I'm not quite convinced that 3-1-1 is

         24  the answer to public opinion on how effective our

         25  City agencies are.
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          2                 Let's deal with common ground, let's

          3  start from common ground and go forward. Is the

          4  administration interested in the public's opinion on

          5  the effectiveness of our City agencies? Do you

          6  agree? You are interested?

          7                 MS. RAMON: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay. It's

          9  common ground. I will go forward.

         10                 MS. RAMON: Common goal.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Right. Common

         12  goal.

         13                 3-1-1, do you say most of the calls

         14  into 3-1-1 are that of requesting a service or

         15  requesting information? Would you say that's the

         16  majority of calls?

         17                 MS. RAMON: The majority.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: As opposed to

         19  calling up and complaining about an agency or how,

         20  you know, DEP came to read the meter or something

         21  like that, you feel most of the phone calls are,

         22  again, to get service or to get information, right?

         23                 When somebody calls in to request a

         24  service, like Chairman Perkins says, to get an

         25  abandoned car taken away, that resident who called
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          2  in does not get a returned call back from 3-1-1 or

          3  from the Administration saying we picked up your

          4  car, you know, last week, how do you think our

          5  service was, correct? So, basically all the resident

          6  does is call 3-1-1, never get a phone call back,

          7  never get a correspondence back, correct? So, how

          8  can you gauge their opinion on the 3-1-1 service in

          9  general, but more importantly in this matter for

         10  today's hearing, how important that agency was that

         11  responded to the 3-1-1 call, if the agency or the

         12  Administration is not requesting back feedback from

         13  the caller? Then how do you justify 3-1-1 being a

         14  survey?

         15                 MS. RAMON: It's not that it's a

         16  survey, it's that you have a wealth of information

         17  that gets to the intent of what are the needs.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: All due

         19  respect, information, but not information that

         20  pertains or is germane to our hearing today, which

         21  is the public opinion about the effectiveness of our

         22  City agencies. That information is lacking in the

         23  3-1-1 call, especially since there is no feedback

         24  from the Administration or 3-1-1 back to that

         25  resident saying how did we do?
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          2                 I think surveys are very important.

          3  That's why I'm a co-sponsor of this piece of

          4  legislation in my mailings to my district that we

          5  get through the City Council, on the back page I do

          6  a survey, and I break it down by agency, I break it

          7  down by community, and I'm interested in how my

          8  community feels that our City agencies are going in

          9  my district. And I break it down when I receive them

         10  back, and I don't get a hundred percent back,

         11  granted. You know, I'll get back maybe 50 percent or

         12  so. Out of that 50 percent that comes back, I break

         13  it down by community, and now see a pattern. There

         14  may be a certain block in a certain community of

         15  mine feels that their sanitation isn't being, or

         16  their garbage isn't being picked up timely, what

         17  have you, but there's a pattern. And I think that's

         18  to your earlier point, I think geographic location

         19  of where these complaints are coming from and the

         20  information back and forth from the agency and the

         21  Administration to the residents is so important.

         22                 But I just don't feel that there's an

         23  interaction between 3-1-1, it's not there yet. Where

         24  the interaction between the resident calling into

         25  3-1-1, if you're going to use 3-1-1 as a survey type

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  or public opinion gauge, I don't see where the

          3  interaction exists where you can call 3-1-1 a proper

          4  gauge.

          5                 That's why I think this intro has its

          6  place in the MMR. I think there is a spot in the MMR

          7  for public opinion, and there's ways of doing it.

          8  With technology today, I think we could cut cost in

          9  a sense or limit cost to get, again, the information

         10  back from the public. And I would hope that in

         11  future dialogue between this Committee and the

         12  Administration, we could work something out.

         13                 3-1-1, again, in my opinion, 3-1-1 is

         14  a way of asking for service but not giving your

         15  opinion. It's how service is gotten by the

         16  constituent or resident but not how that service was

         17  accepted, or whether it was timely. That's just my

         18  point.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Do you want to

         21  respond to this?

         22                 MS. RAMON: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I think I just

         24  want to be clear that the distinction that I think

         25  I've been trying to make and my colleague made even
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          2  sharper is -- do you understand the distinction

          3  between our point of view of survey versus what

          4  3-1-1 offers?

          5                 MS. RAMON: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. Just for

          7  the record, I wanted to make sure that we understood

          8  the difference, and if you had anything to say in

          9  light of that clear distinction, you know,

         10  difference between those two tools.

         11                 Okay, thank you so much for your

         12  testimony. And you know, we look forward to

         13  continuing this discussion and maybe sitting down

         14  and working something out.

         15                 MR. LONGO: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         17                 Mr. Peter Mameli. My man.

         18                 Greg Van Rysen and, of course, Doug

         19  Muzzio. You'll be together as one panel. Doug Muzzio

         20  is representing Baruch College, as is Greg Van

         21  Rysen, and from John Jay College of Public

         22  Management we have Peter Mameli.

         23                 ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MAMELI: It's my

         24  handwriting. What can I tell you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: It's not my
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          2  Italian.

          3                 Please identify yourself and proceed

          4  as you wish.

          5                 MR. MUZZIO: What order?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Whatever order

          7  you decide.

          8                 ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MAMELI: Peter

          9  Mameli, Associate Professor, Department of Public

         10  Management, John Jay College of Criminal Justice,

         11  and I'd like to read some remarks in this morning.

         12                 Good morning, Chairman Perkins,

         13  members of the Committee on Governmental Operations.

         14  Thank you for inviting me to speak at today's

         15  hearing and on Intro. No. 370, regarding the

         16  inclusion of citizen satisfaction survey responses

         17  in the Mayor's Management Report, the MMR, and

         18  allowing me to offer my support for this effort. I

         19  believe the regularly collected citizen survey day

         20  applied in this manner is essential to continuing to

         21  build the MMR into the most useful tool possible for

         22  analysis of New York City government agency

         23  performance. It will broaden the current document

         24  beyond its agency-reported information and 3-1-1

         25  data. The reporting process that leads to improving
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          2  government performance in New York City must always

          3  be mindful, including the best and most feasible

          4  techniques in this enterprise.

          5                 Citizen satisfaction surveys have

          6  been accepted by many governments across the country

          7  and the world as among these techniques. As such,

          8  the citizen survey should take its place alongside

          9  the other data generation efforts represented in the

         10  MMR.

         11                 When considering Intro. 370, I ask

         12  the members present today to remember that hard

         13  science does not define the activity of performance

         14  management nearly as much as hard work does. Hard

         15  work collecting data from a variety of vantage

         16  points in a variety of ways and then hard work in

         17  examining agency performance from as many viewpoints

         18  as possible in order to tease out real problems and

         19  encourage positive change.

         20                 While the hard work of collecting the

         21  data across these techniques must be both rigorous

         22  and carefully carried out, the final analysis and

         23  decisions that flow from it are often more art than

         24  science.

         25                 In other words, there are no
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          2  cookie-cutter answers that will fit all situations,

          3  nor are there any cookie-cutter forms of data

          4  collection on performance that provide complete

          5  information. We must be careful to include the best

          6  forms of data collection and analysis in our

          7  efforts, and then use their collective results to

          8  base our decisions on for improving government

          9  activity.

         10                 When viewed in this way, requiring

         11  the citizen satisfaction survey data be included as

         12  one part of the puzzle of agency performance review

         13  in the MMR is an excellent idea.

         14                 In closing, I would like to make the

         15  following four points:

         16                 First, citizen satisfaction survey

         17  data will help clarify 3-1-1 data, and shed more

         18  light on public perceptions.

         19                 Citizen satisfaction surveys are not

         20  meant to replace the information collected by the

         21  3-1-1 system. It is my contention that the 3-1-1

         22  data and citizen survey data are both necessary to

         23  create a first class government information

         24  reporting system.

         25                 Second, the 3-1-1 system and citizen
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          2  satisfaction surveys are two different approaches to

          3  assessing public perceptions that flow from

          4  different forms of data collection and different

          5  government needs. The non-probability-based 3-1-1

          6  system offers the public the ear of government

          7  readily, and on an as-needed basis to help in

          8  resolving complaints. Therefore it's importance is

          9  on question.

         10                 However, the ad hoc method of data

         11  collection inherent in the 3-1-1 system where

         12  citizens call in at will when they feel the need to

         13  report a problem of some type, does not allow for

         14  the results to be generalized to the entire

         15  population of City residents.

         16                 Therefore, the resulting 3-1-1 data

         17  cannot be relied upon to offer deeper insight into

         18  public perceptions of government weaknesses.

         19                 In contrast, the probability-based

         20  data collection methodology is associated with

         21  citizen surveys, allow for more intricate study of

         22  societal perceptions to take place over time.

         23                 Yet, the citizen survey does not

         24  possess the ability to provide immediate contact

         25  between citizen and government agency for rapid
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          2  problem resolution.

          3                 New York City government will benefit

          4  from the existence of both techniques, and the

          5  reporting both data findings.

          6                 Third, the Council and the

          7  Administration should work together to attempt to

          8  tie together citizen survey question results, 3-1-1

          9  findings and individual agency performance indicator

         10  reports, and a coherent manner that connects the

         11  various conclusions of these methods in an

         12  understandable way within the MMR. It will do little

         13  good to batter the reader of the document with

         14  disparate delusions of information stemming from

         15  differing data collection efforts.

         16                 The results need to be woven together

         17  to an understandable explanation of agency

         18  performance, where these findings are presented in a

         19  straightforward approach that doesn't confuse and/or

         20  abuse the consumer.

         21                 Finally, all data collection efforts

         22  in the MMR and their results need to be regularly

         23  examined, and audited to ensure reliability and

         24  validity. The findings of such ongoing oversight

         25  should be made public at the time of the release of
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          2  the MMR, and be included within its pages.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Next.

          5                 PROFESSOR MUZZIO: Good afternoon,

          6  Council Member Perkins, members of the Committee and

          7  staff. I'm Douglas Muzzio. I'm a Professor of Public

          8  Affairs at Baruch College. With me is Professor

          9  Gregg Van Rysen, who is also a Professor at the

         10  school.

         11                 I thank the Committee for the

         12  opportunity to testify on Intro. 370.

         13                 This legislation addresses a key

         14  shortcoming in the MMR, the lack of any measures of

         15  resident evaluation and satisfaction with City

         16  services. I applaud Intro. 370's call for a quote,

         17  mandating that the Mayor's Management Report include

         18  Citizen Satisfaction Survey Responses.

         19                 A major deficiency, as we all know,

         20  of the PMMR and the MMR, from its very inception, is

         21  the absence of New York City residents' perception

         22  and assessment of the City's services as an integral

         23  feature of its performance, assessment and report.

         24                 Any performance-based reporting must

         25  be ultimately, as Osborne and Gabler argue,
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          2  customer-driven, and these must be accomplished by

          3  legitimate scientific random sampling, as Professor

          4  Mameli has already mentioned.

          5                 As reflected in Section 1 of the

          6  proposed legislation, there is a consensus among

          7  government officials, management experts and program

          8  analysts, that government services must be customer

          9  driven.

         10                 Government organizations should pay

         11  attention to residents' perceptions and assessments

         12  of the quality of the services that they are

         13  provided.

         14                 Now, resident satisfaction surveys,

         15  and as the folks from Operations suggest, are widely

         16  used by municipal governments to evaluate the

         17  quality of their services. Broad-gauged resident

         18  surveys conducted and used by hundreds of

         19  municipalities, including major cities such as

         20  Philadelphia, Detroit, San Diego, San Francisco,

         21  Portland Oregon, et cetera.

         22                 Philadelphia, for example, uses both

         23  agency data of the type that we have in our MMR, and

         24  resident satisfaction in its Mayor's report on city

         25  services, that cities equivalent of the MMR, these
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          2  data are comprehensive and are used to compliment

          3  each other, providing a more complete and nuance

          4  view of Philadelphia government agency's success in

          5  delivering services to residents.

          6                 Parenthetically, the introduction of

          7  the Philadelphia report presents, quote, citizen

          8  satisfaction highlights, including five-year trend

          9  data on satisfaction on 13 municipal services. The

         10  citizen satisfaction data in Philadelphia is

         11  embedded in the document. It's part of the

         12  performance measurement. It's not an adjunct. It's

         13  not a compliment. It is at the core of it. There is

         14  major cities, the Mayor's Office of Operations'

         15  folks review the extant jurisdictions that use it

         16  and how they use it and how it's matched with 3-1-1

         17  is clearly inadequate, as the questioning from both

         18  the Chair and Council Member Addabbo show.

         19                 Their argument is, I need to sort of

         20  step out of the text for a moment to go to their

         21  comment that they've got millions of pieces of data,

         22  and since this data is somehow fresh, it is good

         23  data and somehow gets to the issue. The bottom line

         24  issue is, we want to measure outcomes. If you don't

         25  ask the people who are receiving the services,
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          2  irrespective of whether they're complaining about,

          3  you're not getting a true picture.

          4                 Council Member Addabbo's questions

          5  were absolutely right. 3-1-1, there's no follow-up.

          6  We don't know what happened. The citizen doesn't

          7  know what happened. It's totally non-random. We

          8  don't know their demography, we don't know their

          9  socioeconomics, we don't know their geography, we

         10  know very little.

         11                 All we know is that they're asking

         12  for complaints, asking for information and making

         13  complaints. It is utterly inadequate as an exclusive

         14  source of outcome analysis. It's that simple.

         15                 In terms of the sampling, they

         16  characterize the surveys done by the City Council in

         17  2000 and 2001, Gregg and I conducted those surveys,

         18  and said we only sample 2,500. Yes, we sampled

         19  2,500, and that gives you a pretty good statistical

         20  probability with sub groups, that survey cost around

         21  $100,000.

         22                 Now, if you look at the amount of

         23  data they're collecting and the tens of millions of

         24  dollars, one could argue that to make this a

         25  10,000-person sample, would cost a million dollars
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          2  which would be a pittance compared to 3-1-1 and

          3  actually give you outcome-based data.

          4                 So, I think the cost argument is

          5  fallacious, and certainly the sampling question

          6  still remains for the 3-1-1 advocates. The data is

          7  useful but it is simply not scientifically

          8  generalizable. It's simply not. It's not good data.

          9  Don't use it to measure outcomes. It's not meant to

         10  do that.

         11                 I could go on. For example, on page

         12  two, what resident surveys can provide the types of

         13  information that 3-1-1 can't provide.

         14                 For example, constituent satisfaction

         15  with the quality of specific services, including

         16  identification and problems. Facts such as the

         17  numbers and characteristics of users and non-users

         18  of various services, and the frequency and form of

         19  the use, again 3-1-1 can't do it. The reasons those

         20  specific services are disliked or not used, again,

         21  it's not reported in the 3-1-1 data. The community

         22  needs assessment, again, no 3-1-1. The

         23  identification of high priority, but inadequate

         24  services essentially, except indirectly, not in

         25  3-1-1. Potential demands for new services, again,
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          2  only very indirectly but no direct evidence from

          3  3-1-1. Residents evaluation and support for feasible

          4  policy or service delivery options, no.

          5                 So, on all the dimensions of utility

          6  in terms of outcome analysis, 3-1-1 data just

          7  doesn't cut it. You need scientific surveys.

          8                 So, resident surveys concentrate on

          9  the outcomes of results of government services.

         10  That's what this should be about. That's what the

         11  whole thrust of the Mayor's revolution here is. And

         12  that is, performance-based government and

         13  performance-based evaluation. If you really believe

         14  in that, there should be no hesitancy that you use

         15  citizen satisfaction surveys.

         16                 It's just the appropriate mechanism,

         17  whether it's done in the private sector, non-profit

         18  sector or in the public sector.

         19                 Not to run on, I've testified before

         20  this Committee three times, Gregg I think twice or

         21  three times, and the bottom line is 370 should be

         22  passed. The bill does not locate the place where

         23  this surveying would take place or be the data

         24  originally centered in.

         25                 I would suggest that it would be the
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          2  Mayor's Office of Operations, as they collect the

          3  data now and it goes into the MMR, and they produce

          4  it but it doesn't have to be. The Council could do

          5  it. The Public Advocate could do it. The Comptroller

          6  could do it. Maybe a consortium of the Borough

          7  Presidents could do it, or some combination. But it

          8  can be done, it's not prohibitively expensive, and

          9  if you want outcome-based government, you need

         10  citizen satisfaction survey. 3-1-1 just simply, they

         11  are not designed and they are inadequate to the

         12  task.

         13                 I thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 Next.

         17                 PROFESSOR VAN RYSEN: I really don't

         18  have any prepared testimony, other than just to say

         19  a few words.

         20                 Just in response to what the

         21  Administration testified, I just want to clarify one

         22  thing. In survey research there's a famous example

         23  of a very large amount of data that was wrong, that

         24  was the election of Dewey versus Truman, and the

         25  Readers Digest did a survey and they had millions of
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          2  responses, and then called the election wrong, and

          3  one of the reasons is that the number, the volume of

          4  the responses is not the measure of how good the

          5  data are. It's a matter of how the sample is drawn.

          6  And so the Administration's point that there are 12

          7  million calls that come into 3-1-1 versus 2,500

          8  responses to a random sample survey. It sounds like

          9  it should be clear that the 12 million is better

         10  than the 2,500. And many survey researchers would

         11  argue that a well-done sample of even a few hundred

         12  interviews can be much more reliable than millions

         13  of pieces of data that are drawn in a way that's not

         14  scientific.

         15                 So, I think I just want to kind of

         16  point that out.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So it's not the

         18  quantity.

         19                 PROFESSOR VAN RYSEN: Right. It's not

         20  the quantity at all. In fact, researchers generally

         21  prefer to do a good job with a smaller sample than a

         22  poor job with a larger sample.

         23                 PROFESSOR MUZZIO: If I might, I would

         24  ask Joe Salva of the Population Division of the

         25  Department of City Planning what he thinks of the
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          2  current census, which is supposed to be counting

          3  everybody, with these huge numbers versus a good

          4  scientific sample. And he'll tell you he'll take the

          5  scientific sample every time.

          6                 So, the numbers are, they don't work.

          7                 PROFESSOR VAN RYSEN: And the other

          8  thing I'd like to say about sampling is that, what's

          9  interesting is that the sample size, which you

         10  should keep in mind for New York, that the sample

         11  size that you would need to do a citizen survey with

         12  a certain level of precision in New York, is the

         13  same size sample that you would need in smaller

         14  communities.

         15                 In other words, the size of New York

         16  doesn't determine the size of the sample you need.

         17  It's kind of interesting that across the country

         18  many small cities, which a fraction of the

         19  population of New York, do citizen surveys, they

         20  need just as large a sample as New York would need

         21  to do its survey and yet we can't afford it. That's

         22  kind of strange. And the example that we would have

         23  in our testimony is that Sunnyvale, California,

         24  which as 131,000 people, does a citizen survey, and

         25  we have 8 million people, and essentially for a
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          2  given level of accuracy, you need the same size

          3  sample in Sunnyvale as you do in New York so it's

          4  sort of odd a City as big as New York can't find the

          5  resources to do it, and a small town like Sunnydale

          6  can.

          7                 And I would just add one other thing

          8  that's different from 3-1-1 data, which is in the

          9  written testimony, is survey data you can break

         10  down, you can break apart or disaggregate the data

         11  by demographic characteristics, and you don't know

         12  that from 3-1-1. You don't know the age of the

         13  caller, you don't know the race of the caller, you

         14  don't know the gender of the caller, and you do know

         15  that from survey data. So, you can take a look at

         16  how services are being viewed or being evaluated by

         17  different groups of the population. You can break

         18  down 3-1-1 data by geography, but beyond that you

         19  can't really tell much about who is complaining,

         20  whereas a survey would let you do that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, let me ask

         22  you, so the dollars and cents argument is not

         23  compelling, but what then, and the value of it, of

         24  such a survey is kind of obvious as a compliment to

         25  some of the other tools that are being used, 3-1-1,
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          2  to gather information. So, what would you divine, if

          3  you could, would be the other reasons for not

          4  wanting this type of information.

          5                 ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MAMELI: I don't

          6  think there is a good reason to not want it, okay?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: No, I don't mean

          8  a good reason. I'm just trying to understand, is it

          9  that it could be potentially critical?

         10                 ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR MAMELI: Well, it

         11  could be. But I think what they're hanging their hat

         12  on in favor of 3-1-1 is they keep saying it's real

         13  time, it's real time, it's real time, and surveys,

         14  the cause of the rigor associated with carrying them

         15  out take place in blocks of time that you will not

         16  see this constant flow of information, even though

         17  the survey data is going to provide you greater

         18  accuracy and greater information about the problems

         19  of the City.

         20                 So, I don't think they have a real

         21  solid argument for not doing this. I think there is

         22  value to 3-1-1 data. I think it is not this area

         23  that it is valued in. The greatest value besides the

         24  connection to government, is that the 3-1-1

         25  continuous complaint line that's out there will
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          2  generate new problems and new ideas perhaps for the

          3  ongoing surveys that take place at different periods

          4  of time.

          5                 There is an interaction between these

          6  two forms of data collection that can be reinforcing

          7  and mutually beneficial, the fact that 3-1-1 is not

          8  collecting scientifically rigorous information does

          9  not make the information useless. It just means it

         10  is not as useful, as what is being presented here.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, it's not

         12  designed to do what a survey is designed to do,

         13  right?

         14                 MR. MAMELI: That's right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So that doesn't

         16  make it useless, but it just doesn't do what a

         17  survey is designed to do.

         18                 I want to recognize the Council

         19  Member Leroy Comrie, the Chair of our Rules

         20  Committee has joined us.

         21                 PROFESSOR MUZZIO: Council Member

         22  Perkins, may I attempt to answer your question? One

         23  of the objections that government agencies have,

         24  other than the political objection that such a

         25  survey can make the Administration look bad, no
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          2  administration wants to have its official

          3  satisfaction survey saying that the citizens'

          4  perception of this particular service is awful in

          5  these boroughs.

          6                 Their argument is that the citizen

          7  survey is somehow subjective and this subjectivity

          8  in some way denigrates or mitigates against the

          9  appropriateness of the data. And there is large

         10  discussion in the literature about the conformance

         11  of these so-called objective bureaucratic measures

         12  versus the subjective perceptual measures, if they

         13  haven't even examined it, and Gregg and I, we did a

         14  three letter 15-page communication with Tony Longo

         15  with a different head of Operations three years ago,

         16  and I'm convinced that those arguments are, they're

         17  not dispositive, that you can develop citizen

         18  satisfaction measures that do what they're supposed

         19  to do with that distortion.

         20                 And also I disagree with their

         21  argument that these bureaucratic measures are

         22  somehow better. Just because the experts design

         23  them, they don't mean they're better.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Any more questions? Thank you.

          3                 We'll go to the next panel.

          4                 If you plan on testifying, please

          5  make sure you fill out an appearance card.

          6                 Next is Joyce Brown, a concerned

          7  citizen.

          8                 How are you today?

          9                 MS. BROWN: Fine, and you?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good to see you.

         11                 MS. BROWN: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Please identify

         13  yourself before you speak for the record.

         14                 MS. BROWN: Yes. My name is --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Is your green

         16  on? Press to get to the green.

         17                 MS. BROWN: Is it on? Let me go over

         18  here. This is blinking on.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, that's

         20  good.

         21                 MS. BROWN: My name is Joyce Brown.

         22  Concerned citizen. I was surprised, I thought all

         23  the only thing about 3-1-1 is like 4-1-1, to get

         24  your complaint to the agency. Is that the purpose?

         25  That's what I thought. I didn't think it was

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  supposed to be in data collection where you give all

          3  your specifics, I don't think too many citizens who

          4  call 3-1-1 want to go through five minutes of intake

          5  before they get their problem out.

          6                 But that's my opinion. So, I like

          7  3-1-1, and I've used it a number of times. One was

          8  to the Department of Health Pest Control, because in

          9  my building we had a problem with mice. Well, they

         10  did relay it to the pest control agency. Now, the

         11  problem was with the agency, not 3-1-1.

         12                 Now, I happened to be very

         13  persistent, because I was a person advocate, and

         14  that was part of my job. So, I finally got into the

         15  Pest Control Unit in my District. I didn't know that

         16  they would follow up in three weeks. They didn't

         17  tell me that. I didn't know that you had to be home

         18  every day during their working time until they

         19  arrived. They did not give me any information, the

         20  Department of Health Pest Control. Then they would

         21  come, they expected you to be home, so naturally if

         22  you weren't home, they said someone wasn't home.

         23  They didn't respond.

         24                 So, I further, so I went over to my

         25  agency in my district and informed them of that. The

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  supervisor was very nice and he did give me a time

          3  when they would arrive.

          4                 And, well, to follow-up, they gave me

          5  a report on what the findings was, as well as -- let

          6  me see, when I went back again they gave me a

          7  report. They did not give me a report when the

          8  person came as a follow-up measure. I also gave some

          9  information down at 125 Worth Street to Mr. Liu, who

         10  was very nice, and he knew the procedures. But the

         11  people in that agency did not know the procedure for

         12  pest control.

         13                 So, I don't know how 3-1-1 is going

         14  to get that information, or how you're going to get

         15  the information. Council Member Vallone's structure

         16  about his personal survey sounds good to me. Better

         17  than what's been going on now, to my knowledge.

         18                 Well, that was just an aside. And

         19  also about surveys. You remember Ross Perot? He had

         20  a survey which he put I think in TV Guide. Very

         21  clear, you can understand the questions. Then his

         22  son-in-law, whatever, said that's no good. You've

         23  got to give it to a surveyist. Couldn't understand

         24  the questions. You know, so it depends on the -- you

         25  have to gear your questions toward the reader
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          2  versus, you know. So, that also has to be looked

          3  into surveys.

          4                 But my main problem being here is

          5  with CUNY, the City University. And yes, basically

          6  that's it. I'm a Registered Nurse, have been for

          7  many decades, and I'm concerned about nursing

          8  education, and I believe this is the correct agency

          9  to come to.

         10                 You oversee the City agencies, right?

         11  Isn't CUNY a City agency?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: CUNY is a part

         13  of the City University system, and the Council does

         14  have a committee that oversees the CUNY schools. I

         15  happen to be on that committee. It's not this

         16  Committee. The committee that you're interested in

         17  is the Higher Education Committee, which is chaired

         18  by Council Member Charles Barron.

         19                 MS. BROWN: Yes, I went to his

         20  meeting.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Right.

         22                 MS. BROWN: I complained it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Oh, good. Very

         24  good.

         25                 MS. BROWN: And so you are about it,
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          2  and I gave you my name, et cetera. I haven't heard

          3  anything else about it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. Well, he's

          5  your --

          6                 MS. BROWN: So what do I do?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You've done the

          8  right thing. You told us, and his office is right

          9  next door to mine, and as soon as I leave this

         10  hearing, I'm going to go upstairs and tell him that

         11  Ms. Joyce Brown has come to the Committee with a

         12  matter that she brought before your Committee.

         13                 MS. BROWN: Um-hmm. About the problem

         14  with preparing nurses to be able to work at the

         15  bedside, not just passing a test.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Right.

         17                 MS. BROWN: Because everybody's health

         18  depends on it. Everybody is going to get sick.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: My daughter is a

         20  nurse, and I --

         21                 MS. BROWN: She's complained about it,

         22  too.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Right.

         24                 MS. BROWN: And when you get sick, you

         25  want a nurse who can take care of you, not just
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          2  someone who passed the State Board.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you so

          4  much for your testimony. And we look forward to

          5  seeing you in the future.

          6                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Any questions of

          8  my colleagues?

          9                 By the way, the individual that you

         10  acknowledged earlier for his remarks is Council

         11  Member Addabbo.

         12                 MS. BROWN: Oh, Addabbo.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You mentioned

         14  Vallone. You mentioned Vallone's name, for the

         15  record.

         16                 MS. BROWN: I thought you said it was

         17  Vallone.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: He's the guy

         20  with all the hair.

         21                 MS. BROWN: Oh, okay. And member

         22  Quinn. I've gone to her and complained too.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Actually, her

         24  committee is another good committee.

         25                 MS. BROWN: I know, Health. And I

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  haven't   heard back from her either.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

          4                 MS. BROWN: It's on record.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you so

          6  much for your testimony. This is a hearing that was

          7  with regard to Intro. No. 370, a simple matter of

          8  providing a citizens survey as part of the annual

          9  Mayor's Management Report, and we were happy to hear

         10  from the Administration, as well as from other

         11  experts, particularly from the University of Baruch

         12  College, as well as from St. John's, including the

         13  public, in particular from Ms. Joyce Brown.

         14                 I want to recognize for the record

         15  the Chairwoman of our Higher Education Committee

         16  (sic) is also a member of this Committee, Council

         17  Member Christine Quinn.

         18                 MS. BROWN: Um-hmm.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Oh, I'm sorry,

         20  did I say Higher Education? Got you on my mind. I

         21  believe that was the Health Committee.

         22                 So, with that in mind, I just want to

         23  at this point adjourn the meeting.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)
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